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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE WESTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA 

 

LATASHA TALLEY, Individually and as 

the Administratrix of the Estate of ROMIR 

TALLY, Deceased, 

 

Plaintiff, 

 

vs. 

 

THE BOROUGH OF WILKINSBURG, 

PENNSYLVANIA, OFFICER ROBERT 

GOWENS, OFFICER JANE DOE, CHIEF 

OF POLICE OPHELIA COLEMAN, and 

MAYOR MARITA GARRETT, 

 

Defendants. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Civil Action No.: 

 

COMPLAINT 

 

 AND NOW, comes the Plaintiff LaTasha Talley, Individually and as the Administratrix of 

the Estate of her deceased son, Romir Tally, by and through their undersigned counsel, Max 

Petrunya, Esquire; Max Petrunya, P.C.; Paul Jubas, Esquire; and, the Office of Paul Jubas Law, 

and file the following Complaint in Civil Action. 

PARTIES 

1. Plaintiff LaTasha Talley (hereinafter referred to as “Plaintiff”) is an adult individual 

residing at 1914 Laketon Road, Wilkinsburg, Allegheny County, Pennsylvania 15221. 

2. Plaintiff is the mother of the decedent, Romir Tally, and was appointed as 

Administratrix of the Estate of Romir Tally by the Register of Wills of Allegheny County on 

October 21, 2020. 

3. Plaintiff LaTasha Talley brings this suit on her own behalf, on behalf of all wrongful 

death beneficiaries for Romir Talley, and as the Administratrix of the Estate of her late son Romir 

Talley. 
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4. Defendant Wilkinsburg Borough (“Wilkinsburg”) is a Pennsylvania municipal 

corporation with administrative offices located at 505 Ross Avenue, Wilkinsburg, Allegheny 

County, Pennsylvania, 15221 and at all times relevant to this Complaint, acted by and through its 

officials.  

5. Defendant Wilkinsburg operates the Wilkinsburg Police Department (hereinafter 

referred to as “Wilkinsburg Police”), with its principal office located at 605 Ross Avenue, 

Pittsburgh, Allegheny County, Pennsylvania 15221, is part of the Wilkinsburg Municipality and 

entrusted with the responsibility of enforcing the laws within the Wilkinsburg area, and is 

responsible for the actions of the members of its police department, including use of force policies 

and training.  

6. Defendant Wilkinsburg Police is vested with the management and administration of 

law enforcement in Wilkinsburg, and is also vested with the supervision of police officers so 

employed. 

7. Defendant Robert Gowans (hereinafter referred to as “Defendant Gowans”), is an 

adult individual who at all times relevant hereto was employed by Defendant Wilkinsburg Police. 

8. Defendant Gowans is a resident of Allegheny County. 

9. At all times relevant hereto, Defendant Gowans was employed as a police officer by 

Defendant Wilkinsburg Police. 

10. At all times relevant hereto, Defendant Gowans was acting both individually, and in 

his capacity as a police officer for Defendant Wilkinsburg Police. 

11. Defendant Police Officer Jane Doe is an adult individual (hereinafter referred to as 

“Defendant Doe”), who at all times relevant hereto was employed by Defendant Wilkinsburg 

Police. 
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12. Defendant Doe is a resident of Allegheny County. 

13. At all times relevant hereto, Defendant Doe was employed as a Police Officer by 

Defendant Wilkinsburg Police Department, and was also acting as the partner of Defendant 

Gowans on December 22, 2019. 

14. At all times relevant hereto, Defendant Does was acting individually, and in her 

capacity as an officer for Defendant Wilkinsburg Police.  

15. Defendant Chief of Police Ophelia Coleman (hereinafter referred to as “Defendant 

Coleman” or “Chief Coleman”), is an adult individual who at all times relevant hereto was 

employed by the Defendant Wilkinsburg Police as its Chief of Police. 

16. Defendant Coleman is a resident of Allegheny County. 

17. At all times relevant hereto, Defendant Coleman was employed by Defendant 

Wilkinsburg Police and was responsible for the education, training, hiring, scheduling, and 

oversight of the officers at the Wilkinsburg Police Department.  

18. Defendant Marita Garrett (hereinafter “Defendant Garrett”), is an adult individual 

who at all times relevant hereto was employed by Defendant Wilkinsburg as its Mayor. 

19. Defendant Garrett is a resident of Allegheny County and at all relevant times was 

responsible for the oversight, creation of policies, and training of all organizations in Wilkinsburg, 

including the Wilkinsburg Police Department.  

20. At all times relevant hereto, Defendant Wilkinsburg Police acted through its agents, 

servants, and/or employees, who were then and there acting within the course and scope of their 

employment for Wilkinsburg Police, including, but not limited to, Defendants Gowans, Doe, and 

Coleman. 
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JURISDICTION and VENUE 

21. This cause of action arises under the United States Constitution, particularly under 

the provisions of the Fourth and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution, and 

under the laws of the United States, particularly under the Civil Rights Act, Title 42 of the United 

States Code, Section 1983. Jurisdiction is conferred upon this court under the provisions of Title 

28 of the United States Code, Sections 1331, 1334, and 1367 (a). allegations of excessive use of 

force are examined under the Fourth Amendment’s prohibition on unreasonable seizures 

applicable to the States and individuals acting in their official and individual capacity by the 

Fourteenth Amendment of the United States Constitution.  

22. It is also submitted that the pendant jurisdiction of this Court is invoked over state 

court claims in view of the common nucleus of operative facts as to all claims.  

23. Venue lies within this judicial district, since all of the actions complained of herein 

occurred within the Western District of Pennsylvania.   

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS 

24. On December 22, 2019 at approximately 1 a.m., Romir Talley, dressed in a grey 

hooded-sweatshirt and grey sweatpants, was walking in Wilkinsburg on Penn Avenue, towards his 

home on Laketon Road.  

25. As the decedent was walking on Penn Avenue, a 911 call was placed at 1:00 a.m. by 

an unnamed caller in Wilkinsburg at the intersection of Penn Avenue and Wood Street.   

26. The caller told the 911 dispatcher that a silver gun was pulled on him by a black male 

with dreadlocks that was wearing a black jacket and grey sweatpants.   

27. The 911 caller stated that the male offender was walking on Penn Avenue toward 

Swissvale.  
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28. The 911 caller remained at the scene of the crime at the intersection of Penn Avenue 

and Wood Street.  

29. The 911 caller maintained a view of the offender throughout the 911 call.  

30. Three uniformed Wilkinsburg officers in two marked Wilkinsburg Police vehicles  

responded to the 911 call, and they attempted to locate the parties involved.  

31. After brief conversations with two separate individuals on the street, the two 

Wilkinsburg officers riding together (Defendant Gowans and Defendant Doe), observed Decedent 

walking on Penn Avenue. 

32. Even though Decedent did not match the description given by the 911 caller, the 

Defendant Officers conducted a hostile maneuver with their vehicle by pulling their marked car in 

front of Decedent, exiting their vehicle, and commanding that decedent “take his hands out of his 

pockets.”  

33. Decedent, surprised and in fear for his life following this hostile and unwarranted 

police maneuver, took flight from Penn Avenue, down Center Street and onto Stoner Way. 

34. Defendants Gowan and Doe pursued Decedent on foot, traveling off Penn Avenue 

through a vacant lot between two buildings, eventually turning onto Stoner Way.  

35.  The 911 caller, still on the phone with 911 Dispatch, informed Dispatch that 

Defendant Police Officers pulled down an alley (Center Street and Stoner Way) when they should 

have kept going down Penn Avenue as the perpetrator who pulled the firearm on the caller was 

still on Penn Avenue. 

36. The 911 caller then hung up after indicating that the police had pursued the wrong 

individual.  

37. Shortly after the chase of Decedent Talley began, at approximately 1:06 a.m., near 
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the intersection of Center Street and Stoner Way, Defendant Gowans used excessive, 

unconstitutional, and unnecessary force when he shot the Decedent seven times, including once in 

the head. 

38. The act of shooting Decedent Talley seven times is indicative of reckless, careless, 

wanton, and intentional conduct which shows depravity and deliberate indifference to the rights of 

Decedent Talley and others. 

39. At the time of the shooting, Andre Barham was sitting in his second-floor apartment 

at 908 Center Street.  

40. Mr. Barham’s living room, where he was sitting at the time, is located directly above 

where the shooting occurred.  

41. Mr. Barham heard seven gunshots from a single firearm.  

42. Paramedics responded to the scene and pronounced Decedent Romir Talley dead at 

1:16 a.m. 

43. The Allegheny County Police Department, the law enforcement agency tasked with 

investigating police shootings in Allegheny County, responded to the scene to begin their 

investigation.  

44.  Defendant Gowans, and, ostensibly,1Defendants Doe, gave statements to the 

Allegheny County police about the shooting death of Decedent.  

45. In an effort to cover up and justify Officer Gowen’s unconstitutional and unnecessary 

use of excessive force, Defendant Gowans made material misrepresentations and omissions in his 

statement to Allegheny County Police detectives.   

46. In his statement to Allegheny County Police Detectives, Defendant Gowans 

 
1 No evidence has been made public besides EMS report and ACPD statement.  
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misrepresented to Detectives that he received confirmation from the 911 operator that they had 

located the individual with the gun when they pulled up on Decedent.  

47. Defendant Gowans further misrepresented to detectives that Decedent fired upon him 

first, which precipitated Defendant Gowans’s return fire.  

48. The Wilkinsburg Police Department does not utilize dash cameras for its police cars 

and does not utilize body cameras for their police officers. 

49. The failure of the Wilkinsburg Police Department to implement these basic, cost 

effective, and almost universally used  devices in 2019, which provide transparency, 

accountability, and trust in law enforcement, creates an environment where officers such as Officer 

Gowens, as a pattern and practice, can act with impunity and engage in unconstitutional and 

deliberately indifferent acts knowing that the true facts of the officer’s actions will not be 

discovered by law enforcement. 

50. Accordingly, the failure of the Wilkinsburg Police Chief and Mayor to implement 

these basic items constitutes a pattern and practice of deliberate indifference to the Constitutional 

rights of all individuals in Wilkinsburg, including Deceased Plaintiff Romir Talley, because the 

Police Chief and Mayor know, or should know, that it is impossible to provide oversight of its 

officers and implement needed training and policies based on the conduct of the Wilkinsburg 

Police Officers. 

51. As individuals tasked with the management, oversight, training, and implementation 

of training, policies, and practices, the Mayor and Police Chief know, or should know, that the 

decision not to implement this technology creates a culture where Wilkinsburg Police Officers can 

act without accountability and without transparency, thus creating a culture, as a pattern and 

practice, where officers can repeatedly violate citizens Constitutional rights without any 
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repercussions. 

COUNT I 

42 U.S.C. §1983 – Fourth and Fourteenth Amendment Violations by  

Defendant Officers Robert Gowans and Defendant Jane Doe 

 

52. All of the paragraphs above are incorporated herein by reference. 

53. At all times relevant hereto, each Defendant was a state actor and/or was acting under 

color of state law for 42 U.S.C. §1983 purposes. 

54. At all times relevant hereto, it was the practice, policy, and/or custom of the 

Defendants, including Defendants Gowans, Doe, Garrett, and Coleman, to engage in excessive 

force, unreasonable seizure, improper training, inadequate hiring, negligent retention, and/or 

unconstitutional and unreasonable search, seizure, and abusive practices. 

55. The actions of all Defendants in this matter related to the incident on December 22, 

2019 involving Decedent Romir Talley constitute violations of Decedent’s Civil and 

Constitutional rights under the Fourth and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States 

Constitutions. Said rights include the right to be free from abusive, arbitrary, and capricious 

governmental action. These rights are enforceable via 42 U.S.C. § 1983. 

56. As a direct and proximate result of the violations of Decedent’s Civil and 

Constitutional rights by Defendants, Plaintiff Decedent suffered loss of his life, liberty and 

freedom. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully request this Honorable Court provide relief in the 

form of compensatory damages in excess of the jurisdictional limits, economic damages for all 

costs associated with the injuries sustained by Plaintiffs, punitive damages, reasonable attorney’s 

fees and costs of suit, and any other relief which this Honorable Court deems necessary and 

appropriate to award to Plaintiffs in recovery for which this suit was brought. 
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COUNT II 

42 U.S.C. § 1983 – Unreasonable Seizure by Defendant  

Officers Robert Gowans and Jane Doe 

 

57. All of the paragraphs above are incorporated herein by reference. 

58. At all times relevant hereto, each Defendant was a state actor and/or was acting under  

color of state law for 42 U.S.C. §1983 purposes. 

59. Unlawful detention is when law enforcement, without legal justification, restricts an 

individual’s freedom to leave.  

60. Defendant Officers Gowans and Doe did not have legal justification to detain 

Deceased Plaintiff Talley. 

61. At no point during their brief investigation and based on the information received 

from the 911 dispatch would a reasonable officer believe that Decedent Talley was the individual 

referred to by the 911 caller, or that he was suspicious for any unlawful conduct. 

62. Defendants Gowans and Doe committed the acts described herein in a gross disregard 

and with deliberate indifference to the Constitutional rights of Deceased Plaintiff while acting 

under color of state law, and specifically deprived Decedent of his Constitutional right to be free 

from unreasonable seizure under the Fourth Amendment. 

63. As a direct and proximate result of the unreasonable and unlawful detention by  

Defendants Gowans and Doe, Decedent Romir Talley suffered loss of his life, liberty and freedom.  

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests this Honorable Court provide relief in the 

form of compensatory damages in excess of the jurisdictional limits, economic damages for all 

costs associated with the injuries sustained by Decedent, punitive damages, reasonable attorney’s 

fees and costs of suit, and any other relief which this Honorable Court deems necessary and 

appropriate to award to Plaintiff in recovery for which this suit was brought.  
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COUNT III 

42 U.S.C. § 1983 – Excessive Use of Force by Defendant Officer Robert Gowans  

64. Plaintiffs incorporate all previous paragraphs of their Complaint herein by reference. 

65. The force used by Defendant Gowans against Decedent Romir Talley during the  

course of his arrest was objectively inhuman and unnecessary, and constituted the unreasonable 

use of excessive use of force in violation of Plaintiff’s clearly established Constitutional rights 

under the Fourth and Fourteenth Amendments and 42 U.S.C. § 1983. 

66. Defendant Gowans used unreasonable and excessive force against Decedent  

when, with a depraved and deliberate indifference to human life and conscious disregard for his 

safety and the safety of the general public, he shot Decedent seven (7) times, including once in the 

head, causing Decedent’s death and depriving Decedent of his life, liberty, and freedom. 

67. Defendant Gowans committed the acts described herein in a gross disregard of  

Plaintiff’s Constitutional rights while acting under color of state law, and specifically deprived 

Decedent of his Constitutional right to be free from excessive police force under the Fourth 

Amendment. 

68. At no time during this interaction with Defendant Gowans did Decedent Romir Talley  

pose any threat of violence to any Defendant, including Defendant Gowans. 

69. As a result of Defendant Gowans’s outrageous conduct, Decedent Romir Talley  

suffered multiple fatal gunshot wounds. 

70. As a direct and proximate result of the excessive and unnecessary force used by  

Defendant Gowans, Decedent Romir Talley suffered loss of his life, liberty and freedom.  

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests this Honorable Court provide relief in the 

form of compensatory damages in excess of the jurisdictional limits, economic damages for all 
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costs associated with the injuries sustained by Decedent, punitive damages, reasonable attorney’s 

fees and costs of suit, and any other relief which this Honorable Court deems necessary and 

appropriate to award to Plaintiff in recovery for which this suit was brought.  

COUNT IV 

42 U.S.C. § 1983 – Failure to Intervene by Defendant Officer Doe  

71. Plaintiffs incorporate all previous paragraphs of their Complaint herein by reference. 

72. Defendant Doe was acting as the partner for Defendant Gowans responding to the  

Penn Avenue 911 call on December 22, 2019. 

73. Defendant Doe, as a police officer working with Defendant Gowans on December  

22, 2019, had a duty to intervene to prevent Defendant Gowans from using excessive force with 

Decedent Romir Talley and violating Decedent’s Constitutional rights. 

74. Defendant Doe had a reasonable opportunity to intervene given her proximity to the  

unreasonable seizure and excessive force taking place given the fact that Defendant Doe took part 

in the events leading to the foot chase between Defendant Gowans and Decedent Romir Talley. 

75. Defendant Doe failed to intervene or take any action to prevent Defendant Gowans  

from depriving Decedent of his Constitutional rights by the use of excessive force, wrongful 

detainment, and ultimately shooting and killing Decedent Romir Talley. 

76. As a direct and proximate result of the conduct of Defendants, Decedent Romir Talley  

suffered loss of his life, liberty, and freedom.  

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests this Honorable Court provide relief in the 

form of compensatory damages in excess of the jurisdictional limits, economic damages for all 

costs associated with the injuries sustained by Decedent, punitive damages, reasonable attorney’s 

fees and costs of suit, and any other relief which this Honorable Court deems necessary and 
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appropriate to award to Plaintiff in recovery for which this suit was brought.  

COUNT V 

41 U.S.C. § 1983 – Deliberate Indifference by Defendant Wilkinsburg Police Department 

77. Plaintiffs incorporate all previous paragraphs of their Complaint herein by reference.  

78. Defendant Wilkinsburg Police violated the Plaintiff’s Fourth Amendment rights by  

failing to train its officers to reasonably respond to non-threatening individuals like Decedent 

Romir Talley.  

79. Defendant Wilkinsburg Police violated the Plaintiff’s Fourth Amendment rights by  

engaging, as a custom, policy, and practice, in behavior that caused Constitutional violations to 

individuals like Plaintiff by inappropriately responding to non-threatening situations with 

excessive, unreasonable, and unnecessary force. 

80. These Constitutional violations were caused by Defendant Wilkinsburg Police’s lack  

of training and supervision in regards to officers having the ability, knowledge, skills, and training 

to interact with non-threatening individuals like Plaintiff without causing physical harm. 

81. Defendant Wilkinsburg Police, by and through its organization and through  

Defendants Gowans and Doe, knew or should have known that Decedent was non-threatening, and 

they should have known that any use of force was objectively unreasonable and unnecessary in 

light of the totality of the circumstances. 

82. The force used by Defendant Wilkinsburg Police against Decedent Romir Talley  

during the foot chase and shooting was objectively inhumane, unnecessary, excessive, and done 

with deliberate indifference to the Constitutional rights of the Decedent. The actions of Defendant 

Wilkinsburg Police constituted the unreasonable and excessive use of force, in violation of the 

Decedent’s clearly established Constitutional rights under the Fourth and Fourteenth Amendments 
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and 42 U.S.C. § 1983. 

83. Defendant Wilkinsburg also engaged in deliberately indifferent conduct by failing to 

furnish its police officers with body cameras and dash cameras, which created, as a pattern and 

practice, a culture where officers would act with impunity and conscious disregard for the 

Constitutional rights of individuals like Deceased Plaintiff. 

84. At no time was Decedent Romir Talley a threat of any danger or violence.  

85. As a result of Defendants’ outrageous conduct, Decedent Romir Talley was shot  

seven times and killed. 

86. As a direct and proximate result of the conduct of Defendants, Decedent Romir Talley  

lost his life, liberty and freedom.  

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs respectfully requests this Honorable Court provide relief in the 

form of compensatory damages in excess of the jurisdictional limits, economic damages for all 

costs associated with the injuries sustained by Plaintiffs, punitive damages, reasonable attorney’s 

fees and costs of suit, and any other relief which this Honorable Court deems necessary and 

appropriate to award to Plaintiffs in recovery for which this suit was brought.  

COUNT VI 

42 U.S.C. § 1983 – Supervisory Liability Against Defendant Coleman as Police Chief, 

Defendant Marita Garrett, and Defendant Wilkinsburg Police 

 

87. Plaintiffs incorporate all previous paragraphs of their Complaint herein by reference. 

88. Defendants Coleman and Wilkinsburg Police violated Decedent Romir Talley’s  

Fourth Amendment freedom from being subjected to excessive force and Fourteenth Amendment 

substantive due process rights when Defendants Coleman and Wilkinsburg Police failed to 

adequately train its officers to respond to calls, including responding to calls that involved non-

threatening individuals like Decedent Romir Talley. 



14 

89. Defendant Wilkinsburg Police’s chief policy maker, Police Chief Coleman, is  

responsible for the implantation and promulgation of official policies for Defendant Wilkinsburg 

Police. Further, Chief Coleman is responsible for the promulgation of policies and implementation 

of training to maintain an effective police force that is capable and prepared to deal with encounters 

with individuals, including non-threatening individuals like Decedent Romir Talley. 

90. Defendant Wilkinsburg Police was deliberately indifferent to its responsibility to  

adequately prepare its officers for encounters with individuals like Decedent and for their 

interaction with, detention, and arrest, and use of force on the same. 

91. Defendant Wilkinsburg Police, Defendant Coleman, and Defendant Garrett knew or 

should have known that officers would routinely respond to and interact with individuals like 

Decedent and have to deal with investigations involving non-violent and non-threatening 

individuals like Decedent Romir Talley. In so knowing, Defendant Wilkinsburg Police, Chief 

Coleman, and Defendant Garrett knew, or should have known, that officers would need to be aware 

of the appropriate methods of de-escalation and human interaction with non-threatening 

individuals like Decedent Romir Talley. 

92. Defendant Wilkinsburg Police, Defendant Chief Coleman, and Defendant Mayor 

Garrett are charged with properly training officers with the available and necessary non-deadly-

force skills that would allow officers to interact, investigate, and de-escalate a situation involving 

non-threatening, innocent individuals, like Decedent Romir Talley, for the safety of the officers, 

individuals under suspicion, arrest, and the public at large. 

93. Defendant Wilkinsburg Police, Defendant Chief Coleman, and Defendant Mayor 

Garrett were deliberately indifferent to its responsibilities to create an effectively trained police 

force that could adequately and safely respond to calls from and situations like the ones involving 
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the innocent people like Decedent.  

94. All of the conduct by the officers at the scene on December 22, 2019 was contrary to 

established police methods for interacting with non-threating individuals like Decedent Romir 

Talley. 

95. Accordingly, there were no sufficiently trained officers available to reasonably and  

effectively respond to the investigation that lead to Decedent’s shooting death. The Defendant 

officers who responded did not have the adequate direction or assistance with which to respond to 

the incident that occurred which caused an unnecessary escalation of the situation which resulted 

in the violation of Decedent’s Constitutional rights and resulted in him sustaining fatal injuries. 

96. Furthermore, the failure of the Defendants to implement body cameras and dash 

cameras created, as a pattern and practice, made it impossible to fulfill their obligations for 

monitoring, oversight, and training. This failure to provide the proper oversight and monitoring of 

its police force constitutes deliberate indifference to the Constitutional rights of individuals within 

the Wilkinsburg Community in general and to the Deceased Plaintiff specifically. 

97. All of the above-enumerated failures are the responsibility of Defendant Wilkinsburg  

Police, Defendant Chief Coleman, and Defendant Mayor Garrett, all of whom were deliberately 

indifferent to their responsibility to have appropriate policies and procedures in place to train and 

supervise officers employed by and acting on behalf of the Defendant Wilkinsburg Police to deal 

with investigations involving individuals like Decedent Romir Talley. 

98. As a direct and proximate result of the conduct described above, Decedent Romir  

Talley suffered loss of his life, liberty, and freedom.  

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs respectfully requests this Honorable Court provide relief in the 

form of compensatory damages in excess of the jurisdictional limits, economic damages for all 
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costs associated with the injuries sustained by Decedent, punitive damages, reasonable attorney’s 

fees and costs of suit, and any other relief which this Honorable Court deems necessary and 

appropriate to award to Plaintiffs in recovery for which this suit was brought.  

COUNT VII 

Battery Against Defendant Gowans 

99. Plaintiffs incorporate all previous paragraphs of their Complaint herein by reference. 

100. Defendant Gowen’s actions against Deceased Plaintiff Romir Talley when he  

used excessive force shooting the Decedent seven times with a depraved indifference to human 

life and conscious disregard for the safety of the general public, constituted an intentional, 

unwelcome, and unprivileged touching of Deceased Plaintiff Romir Talley, and was undertaken 

in bad faith and with actual malice. 

101. As a direct and proximate result of the conduct described above, Deceased Plaintiff 

Romir Talley suffered loss of his life, liberty, and freedom. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests this Honorable Court provide relief in the 

form of compensatory damages in excess of the jurisdictional limits, economic damages for all 

costs associated with the injuries sustained by Plaintiffs, punitive damages, reasonable attorney’s 

fees and costs of suit, and any other relief which this Honorable Court deems necessary and 

appropriate to award to Plaintiffs in recovery for which this suit was brought.  

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests that this Honorable Court: 

(a) Declare that the actions of the Defendants constituted violations of the Fourth and 

Fourteenth Amendments of the United States Constitution pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1983; 

 

(b) Judgment in Plaintiff’s favor to all claims for relief; 
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(c) Award compensatory damages for the injuries sustained by Plaintiff due to the 

Defendants’ conduct for all economic and non-economic damages he has, and will 

continue to, sustain, including, but not limited to, damages for medical treatment, future 

medical treatment, pain, suffering, embarrassment, humiliation, mental anguish, and loss 

of enjoyment of life’s pleasures; 

 

(d) Award punitive and exemplary damages, pre-judgment interest, post-judgment interest, 

costs, and other reasonable expenses incurred as a result of maintaining this action, 

including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs;  

 

(e) Wrongful death damages for all beneficiaries entitled by law to collect wrongful death 

damages for the death of Deceased Plaintiff Romir Talley; and, 

 

(f) All other relief provided by law and in equity to which Plaintiff is entitled and that this 

Honorable Court deems equitable, just, and proper to award Plaintiff for which this suit 

was brought. 

 

PLAINTIFF DEMANDS A TRAL BY JURY. 

Respectfully submitted,  

 

By: /s/ Max Petrunya    

MAX PETRUNYA, ESQUIRE 

Pa. I.D. No.: 309122 

 

MAX PETRUNYA, P.C. 

5 Bayard Rd. Unit 917 

Pittsburgh, PA 15213 

(412) 720-3497 

maxpetrunyapc@gmail.com 

 

By: /s/ Paul Jubas     
PAUL JUBAS, ESQUIRE 

Pa. I.D. No.: 311832 

 

PAUL JUBAS LAW 

P.O. Box 10704 

Pittsburgh, PA 15203 

(412) 230-0023 

pjubasesq@gmail.com 

 

Counsel for Plaintiff 

mailto:pjubasesq@gmail.com

